
ORDINANCE NO. 5o&J. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MESA, 
ARIZONA AMENDING SECTION TITLE 8, HEALTH, SANITATION, 
AND ENVIRONMENT, CHAPTER 5, STORM WATER POLLUTION 
CONTROL 

WHEREAS, in 1990 the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) implemented Phase 1 of 
the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program to regulate storrnwater discharges from 
regulated operators of medium and large municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s); 

WHEREAS, under the NPDES program, the City of Mesa was identified as operating a medium-sized 
MS4; 

WHEREAS, the City of Mesa was issued their first MS4 Permit in 1997 from the USEPA; 

WHEREAS, the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) was granted primacy over the 
NPDES program in the State of Arizona by the USEPA in 2002; 

WHEREAS, the ADEQ subsequently established the Arizona Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(AZPDES) program; 

WHEREAS, the ADEQ issued onto the City of Mesa their second MS4 permit on July 29, 2010, which 
then became effective August 29, 2010 (2010 MS4 Permit); 

WHEREAS, the conditions outlined in the 2010 MS4 Permit required some amendments to the City Mesa 
Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Mesa Development and Sustainability Department is to provide the current level of 
enforcement for the existing code sections and any new sections consistent with the City of Mesa Public Nuisances, 
Property Maintenance, Neighborhood Preservation, and Animal Regulation adopted under Title 8, Health, 
Sanitation, and Environment, Chapter 6 of the Mesa City Code; 

NOW, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MESA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: That Title 8, Chapter 2 of the Mesa City Code of Ordinances, Mesa, Arizona is hereby 
amended as follows: 

ADDITIONS TO THE TEXT ARE SHOWN IN BOLD, ALL CAPITAL LETTERS AND 
UNDERLINED: ABC 

DELETIONS TO THE TEXT ARE SHOWN AS STRIKE-OUTS: Abe 

2011 AMENDMENTS TO MESA CITY CODE 

TITLE 8, HEALTH, SANITATION, AND ENVIRONMENT 

CHAPTER 5, STORM WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 

SEPTEMBER 2011 

SECTION: 
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8-5-1: 

DEFINITIONS 
ILLICIT DISCHARGES RELEASES AND CONNECTIONS 
REDUCTION OF POLLUTANTS IN STORM WATER 
INSPECTIONS AND MONITORING AUTHORITY TO INSPECT 
CLEANUP , ..... ND NOTIFICATION OF RELEASES COMMENCEMENT OF AN ACTION 
CIVIL AND CRIMIN,"" .. L PENA.LTIES REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE 
ABATEMENT OF VIOL ..... TIONS DEFENDANTS AND RESPONSIBLE PARTIES 
CIVIL VIOLATIONS AND CITATION 
CIVIL PENALTIES 
(RESERVED) 
HABITUAL OFFENDER 
FAILURE TO PROVIDE EVIDENCE OF IDENTITY 
ABATEMENT 
REQUEST FOR ABATEMENT HEARING 
RECORDING AN ABATEMENT VIOLATION 
EMERGENCY ABATEMENT 
SUSPENSION OF CONSTRUCTION PERMIT OR LICENSE 

DEFINITIONS: 

fAt-The following terms AS used in this Chapter shall mean: (2774/Reso. 6528) 

A.A.C. (ARIZONA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE): OFFICIAL COMPILATION OF RULES THAT 
GOVERN STATE AGENCIES, BOARDS, AND COMMISSIONS. 

A.R.S. (ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES): STATUTORY LAWS IN THE STATE OF ARIZONA. 

AZPDES STORM WATER PERMIT: A PERMIT ISSUED BY ANY AGENCY OF THE STATE OF 
ARIZONA HAVING APPROPRIATE AUTHORITY OVER THE ARIZONA POLLUTANT 
DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM WHICH AUTHORIZES THE DISCHARGE OF STORM 
WATER PURSUANT TO THE C.W.A. 

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES: SCHEDULES OF ACTIVITIES, PROHIBITIONS OF 
PRACTICES. STRUCTURAL AND NONSTRUCTURAL CONTROLS, OPERATIONAL AND 
MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES, AND OTHER MANAGEMENT PRACTICES TO PREVENT OR 
REDUCE THE DISCHARGE OF POLLUTANTS TOW ATERS OF THE UNITED STATES TO THE 
MAXIMUM EXTENT PRACTICABLE. (2774/RESO. 6528) 

CITY: City of Mesa, Arizona. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

CITY ENGINEER: The City Engineer of the City or al:lthorized deputy, agent, or representatiYe. (2774/Reso. 

~ 

CITY MANAGER: The City Manager APPOINTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE III OF THE 
MESA CITY CHARTER, pursuant to Chapter 2Q of Title 1 of the Mesa City Code or such other person as the 
City Manager may designate. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

CITY STORM SEWER SYSTEM: Those facilities not part of a POTW within the City by which storm water 
may be conveyed to waters of the United States, including all roads, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, 
gutters, ditches, channels, storm drains, tmd-retention or detention basins, AND DRYWELLS THAT ARE 
OWNED AND OPERA TED BY THE CITY. (2774/RESO. 6528) 
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CIVIL HEARING OFFICER: THE MESA ZONING ADMINISTRATOR WITHIN THE 
DEVELOPMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY DEPARTMENT OR SUCH OTHER PERSON AS 
DESIGNATED BY THE CITY MANAGER. 

C.F.R. (CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS): CODIFICATION OF THE GENERAL AND 
PERMANENT RULES AND REGULATIONS PUBLISHED IN THE FEDERAL REGISTER BY THE 
EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES OF THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OF THE 
UNITED STATES Cempilatien ef federal regulatiens preml:llgatea under the C.W.A. ana incerperatea herein 
by reference. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

C.W.A. (CLEAN WATER ACT): THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 
AMENDMENTS OF 1972 (P.L. 92-500; 86 STAT. 816; 33 UNITED STATES CODE SECTIONS 1251 
THROUGH 1376), AS AMENDED !A.R.S. § 49-201(6)1 Federal Water Pellutien Central Act, as amended, 33 
United States Cede § § 1251 et seq., incerperatea herein by reference. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

DISCHARGE OF A POLLUTANT: ANY ADDITION OF ANY POLLUTANT OR COMBINATION OF 
POLLUTANTS TO WATERS OF THE UNITED STATES FROM ANY POINT SOURCE. 

E.P.A. (ENVIRONMENTA.L PROTECTION AGENCY): Federal agency chargee with primary enfurcement 
efthe C.W.A. (2774/Rese. 8528) 

HAZARD: A CONDITION THAT PRESENTS A RISK TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH OR THE 
ENVIRONMENT. 

IMMINENT HAZARD: A CONDITION THAT PRESENTS AN IMMEDIATE LIKELIHOOD FOR 
CAUSING HARM TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH OR THE ENVIRONMENT. 

NOTICE TO ABATE: A NOTICE ISSUED TO A RESPONSIBLE PARTY CONCERNING A 
VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER OF THE MESA CITY CODE. 

NPDES STORM WATER PERMIT: A PERMIT ISSUED BY ANY AGENCY OF THE UNITED 
STATES HAVING APPROPRIATE AUTHORITY OVER THE National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System Permit issued by the KP.A. which authorizes the discharge of storm water pursuant to THE C. W.A. 
~.(2774/Reso.6528) 

PERSON: AN INDIVIDUAL. EMPLOYEE. OFFICER. MANAGING BODY. TRUST, FIRM, JOINT 
STOCK COMPANY, CONSORTIUM. PUBLIC OR PRIVATE CORPORATION, INCLUDING A 
GOVERNMENT CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, ASSOCIATION OR STATE, A POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION OF THIS STATE. A COMMISSION, THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT OR ANY 
FEDERAL FACILITY. INTERSTATE BODY OR OTHER ENTITY !A.R.S. § 49-201(27)1 Any inaiYiaual, 
partnership, cepartnership, firm, cempany, cerperatien, asseciatien, jeiBt stack cempany, trust, state, 
m~:~nicipality, Indian tribe, pelitical s~:~bdi\·isien efthe state, federal geYemment ageBC)', er any ether legal entity, 
incl~:~aing their legal representati\·es, agents, er assigns. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

PROPERTY PREMISES: Any building, facility, lot, parcel, real estate, or land or portion ofland, whether 
improved or unimproved, and including adjacent sidewalks and parking strips. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

POINT SOURCE: ANY DISCERNIBLE. CONFINED AND DISCRETE CONVEYANCE, INCLUDING, 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY PIPE. DITCH. CHANNEL, TUNNEL. CONDUIT. WELL. DISCRETE 
FISSURE. CONTAINER. ROLLING STOCK, CON CENTRA TED ANIMAL FEEDING OPERATION 
OR VESSEL OR OTHER FLOATING CRAFT FROM WHICH POLLUTANTS ARE OR MAY BE 
DISCHARGED TO WATERS OF THE UNITED STATES. POINT SOURCE DOES NOT INCLUDE 
RETURN FLOWS FROM IRRIGATED AGRICULTURE. 
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POLLUTANT: ANY FLUIDS, CONTAMINANTS, TOXIC WASTES, TOXIC POLLUTANTS, 
DREDGED SPOIL, SOLID WASTE, SUBSTANCES AND CHEMICALS, PESTICIDES, HERBICIDES, 
FERTILIZERS AND OTHER AGRICULTURAL CHEMICALS, INCINERATOR RESIDUE, 
SEWAGE, GARBAGE, SEWAGE SLUDGE, MUNITIONS, PETROLEUM PRODUCTS, CHEMICAL 
WASTES, BIOLOGICAL MATERIALS, RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS, HEAT, WRECKED OR 
DISCARDED EQUIPMENT, ROCK, SAND, CELLAR DIRT AND MINING, INDUSTRIAL, 
MUNICIPAL AND AGRICULTURAL WASTES OR ANY OTHER LIQUID, SOLID, GASEOUS OR 
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES [A.R.S. § 49-201(29)]. 

POTW (PUBLICLY OWNED TREATMENT WORKS): A TREATMENT WORKS OWNED BY THIS 
STATE OR A MUNICIPALITY OF THIS STATE AS DEFINED IN SECTION 502(4) OF THE CLEAN 
WATER ACT [A.R.S. § 49-255(5)). 

RELEASE: Any DIRECT OR INDIRECT spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying, 
discharging, injecting, placing, leaching, dumping, or disposing of a pollutant iRte er eR aRy laRd TO THE 
CITY STORM SEWER SYSTEM. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

RESPONSIBLE PARTY: A PERSON WHO KNOWS OR HAS REASON TO KNOW OF THE 
EXISTENCE OF ANY VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER ON THAT PERSON'S PROPERTY OR 
PROPERTY WHICH THAT PERSON OCCUPIES OR CONTROLS, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO AN OWNER, OCCUPANT, LESSOR, LESSEE, MANAGER, 
MANAGING AGENT, LICENSEE OR ANY PERSON WHO HAS LEGAL CARE OR CONTROL OF 
THE PROPERTY. 

STORM WATER: Storm water runoff, snow melt runoff, and surface runoff and drainage [A.A.C. R18-9-A901 
(36)]. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

WATERS OF THE UNITED STATES: ALL WATERS AS DEFINED IN 40 C.F.R. 122.2. 

(B) Other terms 1:1sed iR this Chapter are defiRed iR the applieable seetieRs efthe C.W.A. aRd the C.F.R. 
S1:1mmaries efthese defiRitieRs are preYided as fellews: (2774/Rese. a528) 

BEST MANAGEME~lT PRA.CTICES: Sehed1:1les efaeth'ities, prehibitieRs efpraetiees, geed he1:1sekeepiRg 
praetiees, pelll:ltieR pre't'eRtieR praetiees, maiRteRaRee preeed1:1res, aRd ether maRagemeRt praetiees te preveRt er 
red1:1ee the diseharge efpelll:ltaRts direetly er iRdireetly te waters efthe URited States. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

DISCHARGE: ARy additieR efaRy pelll:ltaRt er eembiRatieR efpelll:ltaRts te 'Naters efthe URited States frem 
aRy peiRt se1:1ree. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

POINT SOURCE: ARy diseemible, eeRfiRed, aRd diserete eeRYeyaRee, exeept agriel:llt1:1ral diseharges aRd retl:lm 
flevr's frem irrigated agrie1:1ltl:lre. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

POLLUTA~lT: Dredged speil, selid •waste, iReiRerater resid1:1e, filter baekwash, sevr'age, garbage, sewage sl1:1dge, 
mi:IRitieRs, ehemieal wastes, bielegieal materials, radieaetive materials, heat, 'Nreel<ed er disearded eq1:1ipmeRt, 
reek, saRd, eellar dirt, aRd iRdl:lstrial, mi:IRieipal, aRd agrie~:~lt1:1ral waste diseharged iRte water. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

PUBLICLY OW~lED TREATME~lT WORKS: ARy deviee er system 1:1sed iR the treatmeRt efm1:1Rieipal sewage 
er iRd1:1strial waste efa liq1:1id Ratl:lre whieh is evmed by a state er mi:IRieipality. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

WATERS OF THE UNITED STATES: All waters whieh are el:lrreRtly 1:1sed, were 1:1sed iR the past, er mlij' be 
s1:1seeptible te 1:1se iR iRterstate er fereigR eemmeree. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

8-5-2: ILLICIT DISCHARGES RELEASES AND CONNECTIONS: 
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(A) Unless expressly aHtheri2:ed PERMITTED or exempted by this Chapter, no person shall diseharge 
RELEASE, directly or indirectly, to the City storm sewer system. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(B) Diseharges RegHiated THE RELEASE OF POLLUTANTS TO THE CITY STORM SEWER SYSTEM 
AUTHORIZED BY pHrsHaat te aa ANY AZPDES OR NPDES Storm Water Permit or other AZPDES OR 
NPDES permit Hader the C.W.A. which is issued to the person who causes the diseharge are THE 
RELEASE IS PERMITTED aHtheri2:ed under this Chapter previded that the persea is ia full eempliaaee 
with all reEjHiremeats ef sHeh permit. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(C) Unless identified by the City Eagiaeer MANAGER OR DESIGNEE under Subsection (D) of this Section, 
the following diseharges are exempt from the prohibition set forth in Subsection (A) of this Section: 
(2774/Reso. 6528) 

1. Diseharges RELEASES composed entirely of storm water. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

2. Diseharges RELEASES caused by a person from any of the following activities: (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(a) Water line flushing and other diseharges frem drinkiag POTABLE water sources; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(b) Lawn watering AND LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(c) Irrigation water; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(d) Diverted stream flowS; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(e) Rising groundwaterS; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(f) GreHadwater UNCONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER infiltration TO SEPARATE STORM 
SEWERS eeataiaiag ae peiiHtaats; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(g) PHmped UNCONTAMINATED PUMPED groundwater eeataiaiag ae pellHtaats; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(h) Foundation and footing drains; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(i) Water from crawl space pumps; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(j) Air conditioning condensation aad evaperati>.•e eeeler ruaeff; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(k) ·Natural sSprings; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(I) Individual residential car washing; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(m) Flows from riparian habitats and wetlands, as these areas are desigaated Hader applieable federal aad 
state laws; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(a) Deehleriaated swimmiag peel diseharges; (2774/Rese. 6528) 

(ej{ID_Flows resulting from fire fighting activities; or (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(0) STREET WASH WATER. 

(p) DHst eeatrel wateriag (2774/Rese. 6528) 
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(D) No person shall cause a dissharge RELEASE, directly or indirectly, to the City storm sewer system which is 
exempted under Subsection (C) of this Section if the City eagiaeer MANAGER OR DESIGNEE identifies 
and provides written notice to the person that the dissharge RELEASE from such person has the potential to 
be a sourse RESULT IN A DISCHARGE of pollutants to waters of the United States. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(E) No person shall dissharge RELEASE ANY POLLUTANT, directly or indirectly, to the City storm sewer 
system where such dissharge RELEASE would result in or contribute to a violation of the-ANY AZPDES 
OR NPDES Storm Water Permit issued to the City, either separately considered or when combined with 
other dissharges RELEASES. Liability for any such dissharge RELEASE shall be the responsibility of the 
person causing or responsible for the dissharge RELEASE, and the person shall defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City in all administrative or judicial enforcement actions relating to such dissharge RELEASE. 
(2774/Reso. 6528) 

(F) No person shall establish, use, maintain, or continue any direct or indirect connection to the City's storm 
sewer system which has the potential to result in a violation of this Section. This prohibition is retroactive and 
shall apply to connections made in the past, regardless of whether they were made under a permit or other 
authorization or whether they were permissible under the law or practices applicable or prevailing at the time 
ofthe connection. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

8-5-3: REDUCTION OF POLLUTANTS IN STORM WATER: 

(A) All persons owning or operating facilities or engaged in activities which will or may reasonably be expected 
to result in THE RELEASE OF pollutants eateriag TO the City storm sewer system, either directly or 
indirectly, shall undertake all prastkable APPROPRIATE best management practices ideatified by the City 
eagiaeer to minimize THE RELEASE OF such pollutants TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT 
PRACTICABLE. Such measures BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES shall include the requirements 
imposed by BOTH all-of the following: (2774/Reso. 6528) 

I. This CHAPTER 8estiea; AND (2774/Reso. 6528) 

2. The applicable ~~PDe8 Storm Water Permits; aad (2774/Rese. 6528) 

J-2. Any written guidelines which may be developed, er-referenced, OR ADOPTED BY RESOLUTION AND 
ON FILE WITH THE CITY CLERK for geaeral use by the City eagiaeer. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(B) No person shall throw, deposit, leave, maintain, keep, or permit to be thrown, deposited, left, maintained, or 
kept, except in appropriate containers or in lawfully established dumping grounds, any refuse, rubbish, 
garbage, or other discarded or abandoned objects, articles, and accumulations inTO or upon any street, alley, 
sidewalk, storm draia, ialet, satsh basia, ceaduit, er ether draiaage structures COMPONENT OF THE 
CITY STORM SEWER SYSTEM OR UPON ANY PUBLIC PROPERTY. ADDITIONALLY, NO 
PERSON SHALL DO THE SAME, busiaess place, er upon any private let ef laad ia the City PROPERTY 
IN SUCH A MANNER se that the same becomes er THAT could reasonably be expected te become a 
pellutaat RESULT IN THE RELEASE OF POLLUTANTS TO THE CITY STORM SEWER 
SYSTEM. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(C) Persons owning or operating a parking lot2 ; gas statiea parkiag, storage OR ,and-loading areas-;2-or similar . 
PROPERTY premises which IS-are exposed to rainfall shall eleaft-MAINT AIN those PROPERTIES 
premises in a freq~:~eHt aad there1:1gh manner so that ANY RELEASE storm water from such PROPERTIES 
premises does not cause or contribute to a violation of Section 8-5-2. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(D) Any person performing construction ACTIVITIES shall UNDERTAKE use all practicable 
APPROPRIATE best management practices ideatified by the City eagiaeer to minimize THE RELEASE 
OF pollutants and sediment TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PRACTICABLE from leayiag the 
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constmction site. At a minim1:1m, the person SUCH BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES shall de 
INCLUDE THE REQUIREMENTS IMPOSED BY both of the following: (2774/Reso. 6528) 

1. THIS CHAPTER Not ca~:~se or contrib1:1te to a violation of Section 8 5 2; and (2774/Reso. 6528) 

2. Comply with any written guidelines which may be developed, er-referenced, OR ADOPTED BY 
RESOLUTION AND ON FILE WITH THE CITY CLERK for general1:1se by the City Engineer. 
(2774/Reso.6528) 

(E) Persons ca1:1sing discharges HAVING THE POTENTIAL TO CAUSE A RELEASE OF POLLUTANTS 
TO THE CITY STORM SEWER SYSTEM AND who are required to submit to E.P.A. a notice of intent to 
comply with an AZPDES OR NPDES Storm Water Permit shall provide a copy of s1:1ch notice ANY 
APPROVAL OR STATEMENT OF AUTHORIZATION FROM THE PERMITTING AGENCY to the 
City Engineer MANAGER OR DESIGNEE. THE CITY WILL NOT ISSUE A CONSTRUCTION 
PERMIT NOR WILL VERBAL AUTHORIZATION BE GIVEN TO PROCEED WITH INITIAL 
GRADING AND DRAINAGE OPERATIONS UNTIL THE APPROVAL OR STATEMENT OF 
AUTHORIZATION FROM THE PERMITTING AGENCY HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO THE 
CITY prior to beginning the construction or operation of an ind1:1strial acti•1ity which wo1:1ld ca1:1se the 
discharge. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

8-5-4: AUTHORITY TO INSPECT: 

(A) THE MESA DEVELOPMENT AND SUST AINABILITY DEPARTMENT OR SUCH OTHER CITY 
DIVISION OR DEPARTMENT AS THE CITY MANAGER MAY DESIGNATE IS HEREBY 
AUTHORIZED TO MAKE INSPECTIONS FOR VIOLATIONS OF THIS CHAPTER IN THE 
NORMAL COURSE OF JOB DUTIES OR IN RESPONSE TO A CITIZEN COMPLAINT THAT AN 
ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER MAY EXIST OR WHEN 
THERE IS A REASON TO BELIEVE THAT A VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER HAS BEEN OR 
IS BEING COMMITTED. 

(B) IN ORDER TO DETERMINE COMPLIANCE WITH THIS CHAPTER, PRIVATE PROPERTY 
MAY BE ENTERED WITH THE CONSENT OF THE OWNER OR OCCUPANT OR AS 
AUTHORIZED BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION. 

8 5 4: INSPECTIONS AND MONITORING: 

(A) Upon presentation of credentials and at all necessary ho1:1rs, all a~:~thori:led emplO)'ees of the City shall haYe 
free access to all premises and to all records pertaining to those premises for p1:1rposes of ens1:1ring compliance 
'Nith this Chapter. Inspection, copying, sampling, photographing, and other activities cond1:1cted on the 
premises shall be limited to those which are reasonably needed by the City in determining compliance with 
the req1:1irements of this Chapter and all applicable NPDES Storm Water Permit conditions. All persons shall 
allow s1:1ch acti•lities 1:1nder safe and nonha:lardol:ls conditions with a minim1:1m of delay. (2774/Reso. (}528) 

(B) In addition to those activities described in S1:1bsection (A) of this Section, al:lthori:led City employees shall 
engage in monitoring necessary to ens1:1re compliance with this Chapter and all applicable NPDES Storm 
Water Permit conditions. At the City's expense, the City Engineer may establish on premises s1:1ch devices as 
the City Engineer reasonably determines are necessary to cond1:1ct sampling or meteriftg operations. S1:1ch 
de•lices shall be installed so as to minimi:le the impact on the O'Nner and occ1:1pant ofthe premises. D1:1ring all 
inspections as pro\'ided in S1:1bsection (A) of this Section, a City employee may take any samples necessary to 
aid in the pl:lrsl:lit of the inq1:1iry or in the recordation of the activities on the premises. (2774/Reso. (}528) 

(C) The City Engineer may order any person engaged in any activity or owning or operating on any premises 
which may ca1:1se or contribl:lte to discharges of storm water in violation ofthis Chapter or any applicable 
~lPDES Storm Water Permit condition to 1:1ndertake s1:1ch monitoring activities and analyses and furnish s1:1ch 
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rep eFts as tee City Bagiaeer reaseaably may speeify. Tee eests ef s1:1ee aetivities, aaalyses, aaa reperts seall 
be berne by the reeipieat efthe eraer. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

8-5-5: COMMENCEMENT OF AN ACTION: 

(A) THE CITY MANAGER OR DESIGNEE IS AUTHORIZED TO COMMENCE AN ENFORCEMENT 
ACTION UNDER THIS CHAPTER BY ISSUING A NOTICE OF ABATEMENT UNDER THIS 
CHAPTER OR A CITATION FOR CIVIL SANCTIONS UNDER THIS CHAPTER, OR BOTH. 
THEY MAY ALSO SEEK THE ISSUANCE OF A COMPLAINT BY THE MESA CITY 
PROSECUTOR FOR CRIMINAL PROSECUTION OF HABITUAL OFFENDERS AS DEFINED IN 
THIS CHAPTER. 

(B) NOTHING IN THIS SECTION SHALL PRECLUDE CITY EMPLOYEES FROM SEEKING 
VOLUNTARY COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER OR FROM 
ENFORCING THIS CHAPTER THROUGH NOTICES OF VIOLATION, WARNINGS, OR OTHER 
INFORMAL DEVICES DESIGNED TO ACHIEVE COMPLIANCE IN THE MOST EFFICIENT 
AND EFFECTIVE MANNER UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES. 

8 S S: CLEANUP AND NOTIFICATION OF RELEASES: 

(A) As seen as any ewaer er eperater has aerual er eeastrl:leti·re lrneviledge ef aay release Vihieh may res1:1lt in 
pell1:1tants er diseharges that are net in eempliaaee with this Chapter eateriag the City sterm sewer system, 
Sl:l6e persea premptly seall take all Reeessary steps te eRSI:Ire the aiseeYel)' efthe S81:1r6e aRG eKteat and 
preeeea with eeataiameat aad eleaa1:1p efs1:1eh release. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

(B) Ia additiea te the requirements eeataiaed in Subseetiea (A) ef this Seetiea, sueh persea shall aetify the City 
Engineer efthe release in beth efthe follewiag manners: (2774/Rese. 6528) 

1. By telepheae within hYeaty four (24) heurs er by twelYe (12:00) aeea efthe aeK-1: werk day ifkaewleage is 
reeei\<ed en a weekender helidaj'; and (2774/Rese. 6528) 

2. Ia writing within three (3) days efreeeiYiag lrneviledge efthe release. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

8-5-6: REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE: 

VIOLATIONS OF THIS CHAPTER ARE IN ADDITION TO ANY OTHER VIOLATION ESTABLISHED 
BY LAW, AND THIS CHAPTER SHALL NOT BE INTERPRETED AS LIMITING THE PENALTIES, 
ACTIONS, OR ABATEMENT PROCEDURES WHICH MAY BE TAKEN BY THE CITY OR OTHER 
PERSONS UNDER OTHER LAWS, ORDINANCES, OR RULES. 

8 S 6: CIVIL AND CRIMINl .. L PENALTIES: 

(A) The City Manager may request that the City Attemey eemmeaee eiYil aad/er erimiaal aetiea purs1:1aat te this 
Seetiea against any persea whe Yielates any requirement efthis Chapter er aay applieable ~lPDES Sterm 
\Vater Permit eeaditiea. (2774,LR:ese. 6528) 

(B) A persea whe ·lielates any requirement efthis Chapter er any applieable ~lPDES Sterm Water Permit 
eeaditiea shall be subjeet tea eivil penalty efaet less than eae hundred dellars ($100.00) er mere than tea 
theusaad dellars ($10,000.00) for eaeh Yielatiea. Eaeh day in whish a ·lielatiea eeatiaues shall eeastitute a 
separate eftease. (2774/Rese. 6528) 

(C) A persea shall be guilty ef a misdemeaaer and upea eeavietiea thereef shall be punished by a fine net te 
exeeed twa theusaad fiye hundred de liars ($2,500.00) er by impriseameflt in the City jail fur a peried net te 
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exceed six (a) moaths or by both such fiRe aad imprisoameat for each of the followiag offeases: (2774/Reso. 
em) 

1. Committiag a violatioa ofthis Chapter or aa applicable "NPDeS Storm Water Permit Goaditioa after 
previously haviag beeR fouad respoasible for committiag tJ:u=ee (3) or more Givil violatioas uader this SeGtioa 
withia a tweaty four (24 ) moath period GaiGulated usiag the dates of the commissioa of the offeases, 
Vihether by admissioa, by paymeat of the fiRe, by default, or by judgmeat after heariag; or (2774/Reso. 6528) 

2. Failiag or refusiag to provide evideaGe of the persoa's ideatity, iaGiudiag full aame, resideace address, aad 
date of birth, to a duly authorized ageat of the City upoa request whea suGh ageat has reasoaable Gause to 
believe the persoa is committiag or has committed a violatioa of this Chapter or aa applicable ~lPDeS Storm 
Water Permit Goaditioa. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(D) IR additioR to or iR lieu of all other a\'ailable peaalties, the City may re\'oke aay permit, approval, or liGease 
to GORstruGt improvemeats to real property or operate a busiaess iR the City if the holder ofsuGh permit, 
approval, or liGease is fouad to be ia violatioa ofaay requiremeat of this Chapter or aay applicable NPDeS 
Storm Water Permit coaditioa. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

8-5-7: DEFENDANTS AND RESPONSIBLE PARTIES: 

ANY RESPONSIBLE PARTY WHO CAUSES, PERMITS, FACILITATES, AIDS. OR ABETS ANY 
VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER OR WHO FAILS TO PERFORM ANY ACT OR DUTY REQUIRED 
PURSUANT TO THIS CHAPTER. IS SUBJECT TO THE ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS OF THIS 
CHAPTER. RESPONSIBLE PARTIES MAY BE INDIVIDUALLY AND JOINTLY RESPONSIBLE FOR 
THE VIOLATIONS, THE PRESCRIBED CIVIL OR CRIMINAL SANCTIONS, FOR ABATEMENT OF 
THE VIOLATION AND FOR ANY ASSOCIATED COSTS AND FEES. 

8 S 7: ABATEMENT OF VIOLl .. TIONS: 

(A) IR additioR to or iR lieu of other peaalties available uader this Chapter, the City may serve a aotiGe to abate 
upoa aay persoa eagaged ia aay aGtivity or owaiag or operatiag OR aay premises iR violatioa of this Chapter 
or aa appliGable ~lPDeS Storm Water Permit GORditioR. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(B) The aotice to abate shall set forth all ofthe followiag iaformatioa: (2774/Reso. 6528) 

1. The period of time the persoa has to abate or correct the \'iolatioa; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

2. IdeatifiGatioa ofthe property iR violatioa by street address, ifkRO'NR, aad ifuRirnowa, thea by book, map, aad 
parcel aumber; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

3. Statemeat of the violatioR iR suffideat detail to allovi a reasoaable persoa to ideatify aad correGt the 
violatioa; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

4. Reiaspectioa date aad time; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

5. Name, busiaess address, aad busiaess telephoae aumber of the City eagiaeer; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

6. A waraiag that if the \'iolatioa is aot correGted withia the specified time, the City may abate the problem itself 
or by pri\'ate Goatractor, assess the persoa for the cost of suGh abate meat, aad record a liea oR the property for 
the assessmeat; aad (2774/Reso. 6528) 

7. Appeal proGedures. (2774/Reso. 6528) 
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(C) If the persoa fails to somply with the abatemeat aotise, the City may sorrest or abate the soaditioas s1:1bjest to 
the aotise if the City Eagiaeer determiaes that those soaditioas soastit1:1te a sigaifisaat hazard. If the City 
sorrests or abates those soaditioas, the City Maaager may prepare a 'rerified statemeat as to the asrnal sost of 
sorrestiag or abatiag the Yiolatioa aad sep,ce the statemeat 1:1poa the persoa. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(D) The persoa reseiviag a aotise to abate or a statemeRt of sosts may appeal by s1:1bmittiag a 'Nrittea req1:1est to 
the City Maaager withia fifteea (15) days ofreseipt of the aotise or statemeat. The heariag shall be held 
before the City Maaager as sooa as prastisable after the filiag of the req1:1est. The desisioa of the City 
Maaager shall be fiaal aad biadiag. (2774/Reso. e528) 

(E) The aotise to abate aad statemeat ofsosts shall FI:IR with the laad. The City, at its sole optioa, may resord a 
aotise or statemeat with the Marisopa Co1:1aty Resorder aad thereby sa1:1se sompliaase b:,· aa eatity thereafter 
asq1:1iriag s1:1sh property. Whea the property is bro1:1ght iato sompliaase, the City shall file a satisfastioa of 
aotise to abate •with the Marisopa Co1:1aty Resorder. (2774/Reso. 6528) 

(F) If a sit1:1atioa preseats aa immiaeat hazard to life or p1:1blis safet:,·, the Cit:,· may do aay ofthe follo•Niag 
vlithol:lt abidiag by the thirty (30 ) day aotise period applisable to 81:1bsestioa (B) of this 8estioa: 
(2774/Reso. 6528) 

I. Iss1:1e a aotise to abate; (2774/Reso. 6528) 

2. Ast immediately to sorrest or abate the immiaeat hazard itself; or (2774/Reso. 6528) 

3. Commease aa astioa ia 81:1perior Col:lrt to eRjoiR the persoa to abate the immiaeat hazard. (2774/Reso. e528) 

8-5-8: CIVIL VIOLATIONS AND CITATION: 

(A) A CIVIL ACTION FOR VIOLATIONS OF THIS CHAPTER MAY BE COMMENCED BY 
ISSUANCE OF A CITATION. 

(B) THE CITATION WILL BE SUBSTANTIALLY IN THE FORM ESTABLISHED BY THE CITY 
MANAGER OR DESIGNEE. THE CITATION SHALL ADVISE THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY OF 
THE VIOLA TION(S) COMMITTED, EITHER BY WRITTEN DESCRIPTION OF THE 
VIOLATIONS OR BY DESIGNATION OF THE CITY CODE SECTION THAT WAS VIOLATED. 
THE CITATION SHALL DIRECT THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY TO PAY THE CIVIL SANCTION 
AND ALL APPLICABLE FEES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 8-5-9 OF THIS CHAPTER 
WITHIN THE TIME PERIOD SPECIFIED ON THE CITATION OR TO APPEAR BEFORE THE 
CIVIL HEARING OFFICER WITHIN THE TIME PERIOD SPECIFIED ON THE CITATION AND 
ADMIT OR DENY THE ALLEGATIONS CONTAINED IN THE CITATION. THE CIVIL 
HEARING OFFICER MAY PERMIT AMENDMENTS TO THE CITATION IF SUBSTANTIAL 
RIGHTS OF THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY ARE NOT THEREBY PREJUDICED. THE CITATION 
SHALL BE SERVED PURSUANT TO THE ARIZONA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE. 

(C) THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY SHALL, WITHIN THE TIME PERIOD SPECIFIED ON THE 
CITATION OR WITHIN 10 CALENDAR DAYS OF THE ISSUANCE OF THE CITATION, 
WHICHEVER IS GREATER, EITHER PAY THE CIVIL SANCTION AND THE FEES, OR 
APPEAR IN PERSON, THROUGH AN ATTORNEY OR BY EMAIL WITH THE CLERK OF THE 
CIVIL HEARING OFFICER AND ADMIT OR DENY THE ALLEGATIONS CONTAINED IN THE 
CITATION. 

1. IF THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY TIMELY PAYS THE CIVIL SANCTION AND THE FEES, 
EITHER IN PERSON OR BY MAILING PAYMENT TO THE CITY, THE ALLEGATIONS IN THE 
CITATION SHALL BE DEEMED ADMITTED AND SUCH PERSON SHALL BE DEEMED 
RESPONSIBLE FOR HAVING COMMITTED THE OFFENSE(S) DESCRIBED IN THE 
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CITATION. IF THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY APPEARS IN PERSON, THROUGH AN ATTORNEY 
OR BY EMAIL AND ADMITS THE ALLEGATIONS, THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER SHALL 
ENTER JUDGMENT AGAINST THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY IN THE AMOUNT OF THE CIVIL 
SANCTION, PLUS ANY APPLICABLE FEES DESIGNATED IN SECTION 8-5-9; OR, 

2. IF THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY APPEARS IN PERSON, THROUGH AN ATTORNEY OR BY 
EMAIL AND DENIES THE ALLEGATIONS CONTAINED IN THE CITATION, THE CLERK OF 
THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICE SHALL SET THE MATTER FOR HEARING. 

(D) IF A PERSON SERVED WITH A CITATION FAILS TO PAY THE CIVIL SANCTION AND THE 
FEES OR TO FILE ON OR BEFORE THE TIME DIRECTED ON THE CITATION OR AT THE 
TIME SET FOR HEARING BY THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER. THE ALLEGATIONS IN THE 
COMPLAINT SHALL BE DEEMED ADMITTED, AND THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER SHALL 
ENTER A FINDING OF RESPONSIBLE AND A JUDGMENT FOR THE CITY AND IMPOSE THE 
APPROPRIATE SANCTIONS AND FEES. 

(E) ALL PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER SHALL BE INFORMAL AND 
WITHOUT A JURY, EXCEPT THAT TESTIMONY SHALL BE GIVEN UNDER OATH OR 
AFFIRMATION. THE TECHNICAL RULES OF EVIDENCE DO NOT APPLY, EXCEPT FOR 
STATUTORY PROVISIONS RELATING TO PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATIONS. IF THE 
ALLEGATIONS IN THE CITATION ARE DENIED, THE CITY IS REQUIRED TO PROVE 
VIOLATIONS OF THIS CHAPTER BY A PREPONDERANCE OF THE EVIDENCE. NO 
PREHEARING DISCOVERY SHALL BE PERMITTED, EXCEPT UNDER EXTRAORDINARY 
CIRCUMSTANCES AS DETERMINED BY THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER. THE CIVIL 
HEARING OFFICER IS AUTHORIZED TO MAKE SUCH ORDERS AS MAY BE NECESSARY 
OR APPROPRIATE TO FAIRLY AND EFFICIENTLY DETERMINE THE TRUTH AND DECIDE 
THE CASE AT HAND. AN APPEAL FROM FINAL JUDGMENTS OF THE CIVIL HEARING 
OFFICER MAY BE TAKEN PURSUANT TO THE ARIZONA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 
FOR SPECIAL ACTIONS. 

(F) ANY PERSON AGGRIEVED BY A DECISION OF THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER, AT ANY 
TIME WITHIN 30 CALENDAR DAYS AFTER A FINAL JUDGMENT HAS BEEN RENDERED. 
MAY FILE A COMPLAINT OF SPECIAL ACTION IN SUPERIOR COURT TO REVIEW THE 
CIVIL HEARING OFFICER'S DECISION. FILING THE COMPLAINT DOES NOT STAY 
PROCEEDINGS ON THE DECISION SOUGHT TO BE REVIEWED, BUT THE COURT MAY, ON 
APPLICATION, GRANT A STAY AND ON FINAL HEARING, AFFIRM OR REVERSE, IN 
WHOLE OR IN PART, OR MODIFY THE DECISION REVIEWED. 

8-5-9: CIVIL PENAL TIES: 

(A) ANY RESPONSIBLE PARTY WHO IS FOUND RESPONSIBLE FOR A CIVIL VIOLATION OF 
THIS CHAPTER, WHETHER BY ADMISSION, DEFAULT, OR AFTER A HEARING, SHALL PAY 
A CIVIL SANCTION OF NOT LESS THAN $150 OR MORE THAN $1,500. A SECOND FINDING 
OF RESPONSIBILITY WITHIN 36 MONTHS OF THE COMMISSION OF A PRIOR VIOLATION 
OF THIS CHAPTER SHALL RESULT IN AN ENHANCED CIVIL SANCTION OF NOT LESS 
THAN $250 OR MORE THAN $2,500. A THIRD FINDING OF RESPONSIBILITY WITHIN 36 
MONTHS OF THE COMMISSION OF A PRIOR VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER SHALL 
RESULT IN AN ENHANCED CIVIL SANCTION OF NOT LESS THAN $500 OR MORE THAN 
$2,500. IN ADDITION TO THE CIVIL SANCTION, THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY SHALL PAY 
THE APPLICABLE FEES AND CHARGES SET FORTH IN THE CITY'S DEVELOPMENT AND 
SUSTAINABILITY DEPARTMENT (CODE COMPLIANCE) SCHEDULE OF FEES AND 
CHARGES, AND MAY BE ORDERED TO PAY ANY OTHER APPLICABLE FEES AND 
CHARGES. 
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(B) AFTER ENTERING A JUDGMENT OF RESPONSIBLE AND SETTING A CIVIL SANCTION AND 
FEES AS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 8-5-9 (A), THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER MAY ORDER A 
COMPLIANCE HEARING AND SET A DATE FOR SUCH HEARING. UPON PRESENTATION OF 
EVIDENCE AND/OR TESTIMONY BY THE CITY INSPECTOR AT THE COMPLIANCE 
HEARING THAT THE VIOLATION(S) SPECIFIED IN THE COMPLAINT HAS BEEN ABATED, 
THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER MAY REDUCE ALL OR A PORTION OF THE CIVIL 
SANCTION COMMENSURATE WITH THE COST BORNE BY THE DEFENDANT TO ACHIEVE 
COMPLIANCE, OR THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER MAY VACATE THE PREVIOUS 
JUDGMENT AND DISMISS THE CITATION(S). IF, A MINIMUM OF 7 CALENDAR DAYS 
BEFORE A SCHEDULED COMPLIANCE HEARING, THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER 
RECEIVES BOTH OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS, THEN THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER MAY 
ISSUE WRITTEN ORDERS COMMENSURATE WITH THE AUTHORITY GIVEN IN THIS 
SECTION, TO REDUCE CIVIL SANCTIONS AND/OR VACATE THE RELATED JUDGMENT 
WITHOUT HOLDING THE SCHEDULED COMPLIANCE HEARING: 

1. WRITTEN AND NOTARIZED CONFIRMATION FROM THE CITY INSPECTOR THAT THE 
VIOLATION HAS BEEN SUCCESSFULLY ABATED, AND 

2. A WRITTEN AND NOTARIZED STATEMENT FROM THE DEFENDANT DESCRIBING THE 
ACTIONS TAKEN AND THE ITEMIZED COSTS BORNE TO ABATE THE VIOLATION. 

IF EITHER ITEM HAS NOT BEEN RECEIVED BY THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER 7 
CALENDAR DAYS BEFORE, THEN THE COMPLIANCE HEARING SHALL TAKE PLACE AS 
PREVIOUSLY SCHEDULED. 

(C) THE 36 MONTH PROVISION OF PARAGRAPH (A) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE 
CALCULATED BY THE DATES THE VIOLATIONS WERE COMMITTED. THE RESPONSIBLE 
PARTY SHALL RECEIVE THE ENHANCED SANCTION UPON A FINDING OF 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER THAT WAS COMMITTED 
WITHIN 36 MONTHS OF THE COMMISSION OF ANOTHER VIOLATION FOR WHICH THE 
RESPONSIBLE PARTY WAS CONVICTED OR WAS OTHERWISE FOUND RESPONSIBLE, 
IRRESPECTIVE OF THE ORDER IN WHICH THE VIOLATIONS OCCURRED OR WHETHER 
THE PRIOR VIOLATION WAS CIVIL OR CRIMINAL. 

(D) EACH DAY IN WHICH A VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER CONTINUES OR THE FAILURE TO 
PERFORM ANY ACT OR DUTY REQUIRED BY THIS CHAPTER OR BY THE CIVIL HEARING 
OFFICER CONTINUES SHALL CONSTITUTE A SEPARATE CIVIL OFFENSE. 

8-5-10: (RESERVED) 

8-5-11: HABITUAL OFFENDER: 

(A) A PERSON WHO COMMITS A VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER AFTER PREVIOUSLY 
HAVING BEEN FOUND RESPONSIBLE FOR COMMITTING CIVIL VIOLATIONS OF THIS 
CHAPTER ON 3 SEPARATE DATES AND WITHIN A 36 MONTH PERIOD, WHETHER BY 
ADMISSION, BY PAYMENT OF THE FINE, BY DEFAULT, OR BY JUDGMENT AFTER 
HEARING, SHALL BE GUlL TY OF A CLASS 1 CRIMINAL MISDEMEANOR. THE MESA CITY 
PROSECUTOR IS AUTHORIZED TO FILE A CLASS 1 CRIMINAL MISDEMEANOR 
COMPLAINT IN THE MESA CITY COURT AGAINST HABITUAL OFFENDERS. FOR 
PURPOSES OF CALCULATING THE 36 MONTH PERIOD UNDER THIS PARAGRAPH. THE 
DATES OF THE COMMISSION OF THE OFFENSES ARE THE DETERMINING FACTOR. 

(B) UPON CONVICTION OF A VIOLATION OF THIS SECTION, THE COURT MAY IMPOSE A 
SENTENCE AUTHORIZED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA FOR A CLASS 1 
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MISDEMEANOR, INCLUDING INCARCERATION NOT TO EXCEED 6 MONTHS IN JAIL OR A 
FINE NOT TO EXCEED $2,500, EXCLUSIVE OF PENALTY ASSESSMENTS PRESCRIBED BY 
LAW, OR BOTH. THE COURT SHALL ORDER A PERSON WHO HAS BEEN CONVICTED OF A 
VIOLATION OF THIS SECTION TO PAY A FINE OF NOT LESS THAN $500 FOR EACH COUNT 
UPON WHICH A CONVICTION HAS BEEN OBTAINED AND BE PLACED ON PROBATION 
FOR UP TO 36 MONTHS. THE COURT MAY REDUCE SUCH FINES TO $250 FOR EACH 
COUNT UPON WHICH A CONVICTION HAS BEEN OBTAINED PROVIDED ALL VIOLATIONS 
HAVE BEEN ABATED AND THE SITE IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL SECTIONS OF THIS 
CHAPTER WITHIN 90 DAYS OF SENTENCING. 

(C) EVERY ACTION OR PROCEEDING UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL BE COMMENCED AND 
PROSECUTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA RELATING 
TO CRIMINAL MISDEMEANORS AND THE ARIZONA RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE. 

8-5-12: FAILURE TO PROVIDE EVIDENCE OF IDENTITY: 

A PERSON WHO FAILS OR REFUSES TO PROVIDE EVIDENCE OF HIS IDENTITY TO A DULY 
AUTHORIZED AGENT OF THE CITY UPON REQUEST, WHEN SUCH AGENT HAS REASONABLE 
CAUSE TO BELIEVE THE PERSON HAS COMMITTED A VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER, IS 
GUILTY OF A MISDEMEANOR. EVIDENCE OF IDENTITY UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL 
CONSIST OF A PERSON'S FULL NAME, RESIDENCE ADDRESS, AND DATE OF BIRTH. 

8-5-13: ABATEMENT: 

(A) IN ADDITION TO OR IN LIEU OF FILING A CIVIL CITATION OR CRIMINAL COMPLAINT, 
THE CITY MAY SERVE A NOTICE TO ABATE ANY VIOLATION OF THIS CHAPTER. 

(B) THE NOTICE TO ABATE SHALL SET FORTH THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

1. THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY HAS 30 CALENDAR DAYS FROM SERVICE OF THE NOTICE TO 
ABATE OR CORRECT THE VIOLATION. 

2. IDENTIFICATION OF THE PROPERTY IN VIOLATION BY STREET ADDRESS, IF KNOWN, 
AND IF UNKNOWN, THEN BY LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY OR BY MARICOPA 
COUNTY BOOK, MAP, AND PARCEL NUMBER. 

3. STATEMENT OF THE VIOLATION IN SUFFICIENT DETAIL TO ALLOW A REASONABLE 
PERSON TO IDENTIFY AND CORRECT THE VIOLA TION(S). 

4. REINSPECTION DATE AND TIME. 

5. NAME, BUSINESS ADDRESS, AND BUSINESS PHONE NUMBER OF THE CITY INSPECTOR 
WHO ISSUED THE NOTICE TO ABATE. 

6. A WARNING STATING THAT IF THE VIOLATIONS ARE NOT CORRECTED WITHIN THE 30 
CALENDAR DAY PERIOD, THE CITY MAY ABATE THE PROBLEM ITSELF OR BY PRIVATE 
CONTRACTOR, ASSESS THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY FOR THE COST OF SUCH ABATEMENT, 
AND RECORD A LIEN ON THE PROPERTY FOR THE ASSESSMENT. 

7. HEARING PROCEDURES. 
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8. STATEMENT INDICATING THAT THE 30 CALENDAR DAY NOTICE SET FORTH IN THIS 
SECTION SHALL NOT APPLY TO EMERGENCY ABATEMENTS PURSUANT TO THIS 
CHAPTER. 

(C) IF THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY OR OTHER PERSON SERVED A NOTICE TO ABATE BY THE 
CITY PURSUANT TO THIS CHAPTER FAILS TO COMPLY WITH SUCH NOTICE; THE CITY 
MAY CORRECT OR ABATE THE CONDITIONS SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE IF THOSE 
CONDITIONS CONSTITUTE A HAZARD. IF THE CITY CORRECTS OR ABATES THOSE 
CONDITIONS, THE CITY MANAGER OR DESIGNEE MAY PREPARE A VERIFIED 
STATEMENT AS TO THE ACTUAL COST OF CORRECTING OR ABATING THE VIOLATION, 
INCLUDING COSTS OF INSPECTION AND OTHER CITY-INCURRED COSTS ASSOCIATED 
WITH ABATING THE VIOLATION. THE STATEMENT SHALL BE SERVED PURSUANT TO 
THE ARIZONA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE. THAT STATEMENT SHALL FURTHER SET 
FORTH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. THAT THE STATEMENT OF COSTS IS AN ASSESSMENT UPON THE LOTS AND TRACTS OF 
LAND FROM WHICH THE CITY CORRECTED OR ABATED THE VIOLATION. 

2. THAT THE PARTY HAS 15 CALENDAR DAYS FROM THE DATE OF DELIVERY OR MAILING 
OF THE STATEMENT TO PAY. 

3. IN THE EVENT PAYMENT IS NOT RECEIVED IN 15 CALENDAR DAYS. THE CITY WILL 
PLACE A LIEN ON THE PROPERTY IN THE AMOUNT OF THE ASSESSMENT. 

4. APPEAL PROCEDURES. 

(D) THE NOTICE TO ABATE AND THE STATEMENT OF ABATEMENT COSTS SHALL BE 
SERVED TO THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY PURSUANT TO THE ARIZONA RULES OF CIVIL 
PROCEDURE. 

8-5-14: REQUEST FOR ABATEMENT HEARING: 

THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY RECEIVING A NOTICE TO ABATE UNDER THIS CHAPTER OR A 
STATEMENT OF COSTS INCURRED BY THE CITY IN ABATING A HAZARD MAY APPEAL BY 
REQUESTING IN WRITING A HEARING AND BY SERVING SUCH A REQUEST TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT AND SUST AINABILITY DEPARTMENT WITHIN 15 CALENDAR DAYS OF 
SERVICE OF THE NOTICE TO ABATE OR THE STATEMENT OF COSTS. THE HEARING SHALL BE 
HELD BEFORE THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER AS SOON AS PRACTICABLE AFTER THE FILING 
OF THE REQUEST. AN APPEAL FROM FINAL JUDGMENTS OF THE CIVIL HEARING OFFICER 
MAY BE TAKEN PURSUANT TO THE ARIZONA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE FOR SPECIAL 
ACTIONS. IF NO WRITTEN AND TIMELY REQUEST FOR HEARING IS MADE UNDER THIS 
SECTION TO DEVELOPMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY DEPARTMENT, THEN THE NOTICE OF 
ABATEMENT OR STATEMENT OF COSTS IS FINAL AND BINDING. 

8-5-15: RECORDING AN ABATEMENT VIOLATION: 

THE NOTICE TO ABATE AND STATEMENT OF COSTS SHALL RUN WITH THE LAND. THE CITY. 
AT ITS SOLE OPTION, MAY RECORD A NOTICE TO ABATE OR STATEMENT OF COSTS WITH 
THE MARICOPA COUNTY RECORDER AND THEREBY CAUSE COMPLIANCE BY A PERSON 
THEREAFTER ACQUIRING SUCH PROPERTY. WHEN THE PROPERTY IS BROUGHT INTO 
COMPLIANCE, A SATISFACTION OF NOTICE TO ABATE SHALL BE FILED WITH THE 
MARICOPA COUNTY RECORDER. 
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8-5-16: EMERGENCY ABATEMENT: 

(A) IF A SITUATION PRESENTS AN IMMINENT HAZARD TO LIFE OR PUBLIC SAFETY, THE 
CITY MAY ISSUE A NOTICE TO ABATE DIRECTING THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY TO 
IMMEDIATELY TAKE SUCH ACTION AS IS APPROPRIATE TO CORRECT OR ABATE THE 
EMERGENCY DESCRIBED IN THE NOTICE. IN ADDITION, THE CITY MAY ACT 
IMMEDIATELY TO CORRECT OR ABATE THE EMERGENCY ITSELF OR MAY COMMENCE 
AN ACTION IN SUPERIOR COURT TO ENJOIN THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY TO ABATE THE 
IMMINENT HAZARD. IN THE EVENT THE CITY IS UNABLE TO CONTACT THE 
RESPONSIBLE PARTY DESPITE REASONABLE EFFORTS TO DO SO, IT IN NO WAY 
AFFECTS THE CITY'S RIGHT UNDER THIS SECTION TO CORRECT OR ABATE THE 
EMERGENCY ITSELF. 

(B) THE CITY MAY RECOVER ITS COSTS INCURRED IN ABATING AN IMMINENT HAZARD 
UNDER THIS SECTION IN THE SAME MANNER AS PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 8-5-13(C). 
THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY MAY APPEAL THE CITY'S EMERGENCY ABATEMENT ACTION 
UNDER THIS SECTION OR THE CITY'S STATEMENT OF COSTS FOR AN EMERGENCY 
ABATEMENT IN THE SAME MANNER AS PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 8-5-14. 

8-5-17: SUSPENSION OF CONSTRUCTION PERMIT OR LICENSE: 

ANY CONSTRUCTION PERMIT OR LICENSE ISSUED BY THE CITY WHICH AUTHORIZES WORK 
RESULTING IN AN ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SECTION 8-5-2 OR SECTION 8-5-3 OF THIS 
CHAPTER MAY BE SUSPENDED PENDING ABATEMENT OF SAID VIOLATION OR FINAL 
RESOLUTION OF A CIVIL HEARING OF THE MATTER. 

SECTION 2: Severability. 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be 
invalid or unconditional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions thereof, so long as the intent of the remaining portions is clear. 

SECTION 3: Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in direct conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance or any part of 
the Code adopted herein by reference are hereby repealed upon this Ordinance taking effect. 

SECTION 4: Effective Dates. 

All amendments of this Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption and is accordingly so 
ordained. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council ofthe City ofMesa, Arizona, this 12th day of September, 
2011. 
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